
 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL CHAMBERS 

9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD  

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

 

 

            
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, February 22, 2024 at 6:00 P.M. 

 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

 

B. Approval of Minutes 

 

1. Approval of the regular meeting of February 8, 2024. 

 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters 

 

1. Ghaffar Area Exception. Request a lot coverage increase for a storage shed at 5537 W. 

River Park Court (806 0340 000). 

 

D. Business Matters 

 

1. Spellman Trailers, Inc. Land Combination and Site Plan Amendment. Request for 

approval of a Land Combination to combine Lot 1, Lot 2 and Lot 4 of Certified Survey Map 

No. 1330 and vacated service road lying north abutting Lots 1 and 2 and a Site Plan 

Amendment to allow construction of a building addition and other site modifications, upon 

properties located at approximately 5921 West Ryan Road (Tax Key Nos. 899 9991 002, 899 

9991 003 and 899 9991 005), and vacated service road. 

 

E. Adjournment 

 
The YouTube channel “City of Franklin WI” will be livestreaming the Plan Commission meeting so the public can watch and listen 

to it. https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov. Any questions on this agenda may be directed to the Department of City 

Development’s office at 414-425-4024, Monday through Friday, 8 AM – 4:30 PM. 
 

*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City Hall during regular business hours. 
 

**Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item 

over which they have decision-making responsibility.  This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. 

Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 
 

[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids 

and services. For additional information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500.] 
 

REMINDERS: Next Regular Plan Commission Meeting: March 7. 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov


  

City of Franklin unapproved 

Plan Commission Meeting 

February 8, 2023 

Minutes 

 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Alderwoman Courtney Day called the February, 8, 2024 Plan Commission meeting to order at 

6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, 

Wisconsin.  

 

Present were Alderwoman Courtney Day and Commissioners Patrick Leon, Kevin Haley and 

Michael Shawgo. Also present were Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, City Attorney Jesse 

Wesolowski, Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderwoman Michele Eichmann, Principal Planner Régulo 

Martínez-Montilva, Principal Planner Marion Ecks, Associate Planner Luke Hamill and Planning 

Associate Nick Fuchs. Excused was Commissioner Patricia Hogan, City Engineer Glen Morrow 

and Mayor John Nelson.  

 

B. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of December 21, 2023 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to approve, with minor 

corrections, the December 21, 2023 meeting minutes. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried 

(4-0-2). 

 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters 

 

1.    Hamed Area Exception. Request for lot coverage increase to allow for a single-family dwelling    

upon property located at 7780 W. Faith Drive (792 0272 000).  

 

 Principal Planner Martínez-Montilva presented the request and application.   

 

The Official Notice of Public Hearing for lot coverage increase to allow for a single-family    

dwelling was read in to the record by Principal Planner Martínez-Montilva and the Public 

Hearing opened at 6:07 pm and closed at 6:07 pm.  

 

 Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Shawgo seconded a motion to recommend 

approval of an Area Exception to allow for an increased lot coverage of 27.8% for a proposed 

single-family dwelling, exceeding the R-6 as of right lot coverage of 25%, for property located 

at 7780 W. Faith Drive. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

D. Business Matters 

 

1.    Croatian Park Pavilion Site Plan. Request for approval of a Site Plan Amendment application to 

allow for the development of a new pavilion to replace the existing stage, pavilion and other existing 

buildings in the northwest corner of the park, upon property located at 9100-9140 S. 76th Street 

(884 9995 000).  

 

Principal Planner Marion Ecks presented the Site Plan Amendment application. 

 



  

Motion to suspend rules to allow for public comments. Returned to regular order.  

 

Commissioner Haley moved and Commissioner Leon seconded a motion to adopt a Resolution 

amending the Site Plan for properties located at 9100 South 76th Street to allow for 

development of a new pavilion, and installation of stormwater facilities, with amended 

condition No. 6. Pavilion parking facilities must be improved with pavement and stormwater 

drainage facilities (§15-5.0202.D).  Curb and gutter are not required, per §15-5.0202.E.1 and 

paving shall not be required to occur until June 1, 2025. Temporary occupancy may be issued 

to allow for the use of newly developed premises prior to completion of this requirement. On 

voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2).  

 

2.   Rural and Urban Areas map update. Proposal to redefine the rural and urban areas as provided  

in Ordinance No. 85-860 regulating truck parking and raising animals. 

 

 Principal Planner Regulo Martínez-Montilva presented the item.  

 

     Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to recommend  

   approval of a Resolution redefining the rural and urban areas as provided in Ordinance No. 85-

860 regulating truck parking and raising animals. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried 

(4-0-2). 

 

3.  Amendment to Plan Commission administrative procedures. Proposal to change meeting 

frequency to once a month. 

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Shawgo seconded a motion to table to the 

March 21, 2024 meeting as a public hearing item. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried 

(4-0-2). 

 
Motion made to suspend rules for Alderman Holpfer. Returned to regular order. 
 

4.    Franklin Public School District Site Plan Amendment. Request for approval of a Site Plan 

Amendment for a building addition, parking lot, landscaping, lighting, soccer fields, playground, 

detached storage building, and storm water management facilities upon property located at 8225, 

8255, 8429, and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue (838 9978 001). 

 

 Planning Associate Nick Fuchs presented the Site Plan Amendment application.  

 

Motion to suspend rules to allow for public comments. Returned to regular order.  
 

Motion to suspend rules to allow for public comments. Returned to regular order. 
 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Shawgo seconded a motion to table to the 

March 7, 2024, meeting, and to send the application for review and comments to the 

departments of Engineering, Fire and Police. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-

0-2). 

 



  

5.    Forest Home Commercial Condominium Plat. Request for approval of a Condominium Plat for 

property located at 11217 West Forest Home Avenue (Tax Key No. 748 9961 001).  

 

 Planning Associate Nick Fuchs presented the Site Plan Amendment application.  

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to approve the 

Condominium Plat for the Forest Home Commercial Condominiums located at 11217 West 

Forest Home Avenue, subject to the conditions in the draft Resolution. On voice vote, all voted 

‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

6.    Dairy Queen Site Plan. Request for approval of a Site Plan for a new Dairy Queen for property at 

7730 S Lovers Lane Road. 

 

 Associate Planner Luke Hamill presented the Site Plan application.  

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to approve the Site 

Plan for the construction of a multi-tenant commercial building for property located at 7730 S 

Lovers Lane Road subject to the conditions in the draft resolution. On voice vote, all voted 

‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 

 

E.    Adjournment 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded to adjourn the meeting at 8:17     

p.m. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-2). 



C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of February 22, 2024 

 
Area Exception 

Item C.1. 

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends to table this Area Exception 
request until the open enforcement case is closed.  

Project name: Ghaffar Area Exception, lot coverage increase 
Property Owner: Ghaffar, Imran & Saima 
Applicant: Ghaffar, Imran 
Property Address/TKN: 5537 W. River Park Court / 806 0340 000 
Aldermanic District: District 5 
Zoning District: R-6 – Suburban Single-Family Residence District 
Staff Planner: Régulo Martínez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner 

 
INTRODUCTION: 
Area Exception for a lot coverage increase to allow for a storage shed (10 x 15 feet), exceeding 
the as of right lot coverage of 25% in the R-6 zoning district.  
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 
The process to grant an area exception involves review and recommendation of the Plan 
Commission followed by approval by the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals.  

 
Per Section 15-10.0209, area exceptions may be granted to increase the maximum lot 
coverage by no more than 20%. Section 15-10.0209.G. of the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) specifically lists Standards to be reviewed to grant or deny an Area 
Exception, which the Plan Commission and Board of Zoning and Building Appeals will 
use to consider the request. 
 
Lot coverage is defined as “the area of a zoning lot occupied by the principal building or 
buildings, accessory structure(s) and accessory building(s)”. For example, structures that 
count towards lot coverage include: principal buildings or dwellings, garages, sheds, 
swimming pools and associated paved surfaces within four feet from the pool, decks, any 
structures with a cover or canopy, etc. This lot coverage definition should not be confused 
with impervious surface ratio (ISR) as driveways and walkways count towards ISR but not 
for lot coverage. 
 
Staff review comments are included in the meeting packet. The applicant submitted lot 
coverage calculations to address comments from the Department of City Development.  
  



 2 

Maximum lot coverage calculation: 
• The property area is 10,518 square feet (sq. ft.).  
• Per UDO Table 15-3.0207, the maximum lot coverage is 25% in the R-6 Suburban Single-

Family Residence District where the subject property is located. Based on the property area, 
the maximum lot coverage for this property is 2,629 sq. ft. 

• According to applicant’s calculations, the existing lot coverage is 26.06% (2,742 sq. ft.), 
specifically dwelling (2,075 sq. ft.), attached garage (480 sq. ft.), deck (131.5 sq. ft.) and 
porch (55.74 sq. ft.).  

• The proposed deck for which this Area Exception has been requested would be 150 sq. ft, 
resulting in a lot coverage of 27.50% (2,892 sq. ft.). 

• With approval of an Area Exception, the maximum lot coverage may be increased up to 20% 
over the maximum permitted lot coverage in this zoning district (25%), resulting in 30% 
(3,155 sq. ft.). Therefore, this request falls within the allowable increase if the Area 
Exception is granted. 

 
Per the River Park Addition No. 2 subdivision plat, there are no protected natural 
resources on the subject lot.  
 
SITE COMPLIANCE 
This property is subject to an open enforcement case for unpermitted work in the basement 
(EN24-0049). It’s worth noting that the unpermitted work is inside the dwelling and doesn’t 
affect lot coverage. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
City Development Staff recommends to table this Area Exception request until the open 
enforcement case (EN24-0049) is closed. 
 
The standard No. 5 for Area Exceptions is “[t]hat the area exception shall be in harmony with the 
general purpose and intent of this Unified Development Ordinance [UDO]”. In staff’s opinion, 
an open code violation is not in harmony with the intent of the UDO. 
 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

5537 W. River Park Court, Franklin WI, 53132
TKN 806 0340 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

R-6 

FW  

R-6 

FC  

RIVER PARK CT

56
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 125 25062.5 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

5537 W. River Park Court, Franklin WI, 53132
TKN 806 0340 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

RIVER PARK CT

56
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 125 25062.5 Feet

Property

 



1  

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: January 9, 2024 

 
To: Ghaffar, Imram & Saima 

 
From: Department of City Development.  
 Régulo Martínez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner 

 
RE: Review comments for Area Exception – 5537 W. River Park Court 

  
 
Please be advised that the Department of City Development has reviewed your Area Exception 
application  to allow for an increased lot coverage in the R-6 zoning district.  

 
Department of City Development Comments 

1. Your application cannot be scheduled for a Plan Commission meeting until this comment is 
addressed. Per Section 15-10.0209, area exceptions may be granted to increase the maximum lot 
coverage by no more than 20%. The lot coverage permitted as of right in the R-6 zoning district is 
25%, and it may be increase up to 30% if an area exception is granted. 
 
Your project narrative states that “the current residence covers approximately 30% of the lot”, 
therefore, the existing lot coverage is already at the maximum that could be approved with an area 
exception. Staff identifies two options: (1) prepare accurate lot coverage calculations, if the  
proposed total lot coverage is 30% or less, staff can schedule your application for Plan Commission 
and Board of Zoning and Building Appeals meetings for public hearing and decision. (2) If the 
proposed lot coverage is over 30%, you may apply for a variance (application form attached), 
however, staff anticipates recommending denial of a variance for a shed as it’s difficult to 
demonstrate that the shed is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property 
rights (Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-10-.0211, finding 4). 
 
Staff suggests to itemize your lot coverage calculations in residence, garage, porch (if any), deck 
(including stairs and/or ramps) and proposed shed.  

Engineering Department Comments 
2. Engineering has no objection to the Area Exception request. However, the proposed storage shed 

should not result in any drainage nuisance. 

Fire Department Comments 
3. FD has no comments/concerns. 

Inspection Services Department Comments 
4. Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal at this time. 

 







Lot Coverage

Homeowner is asking that the 150 sq ft( 10ft x15ft) proposed
storage shed be placed at the rear of the 10,518 sq foot lot,
located at 5537 w River Park Court, Franklin Wi 53132.
Homeowner is proposing the shed to be placed at the

south-east end of the property, 5 ft away from the property
line on the South- East end, 14ft away from the property line
on the South-West End of the property and 15ft away from the

existing residence . The proposed shed will have a lot
coverage of 1.4%. The current residence covers

approximately 30% of the lot.



8060340000
Property Address 5537 W River Park Ct, Franklin WI

Current Proposed
GIS Accsssor %coverage GIS Accsssor %coverage

Los-Area 0.24 0.24
Lot-SF 10518 10518

House 2075 2075
Garage 480 480
Deck 131.5 131.5
Porch 55.74 55.74
Shed 150

Total Coverage -SF 2742 2892

Lot Coverage Ratio 26% 27%









  

 1 

 C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N   

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of February 22, 2024 
 

Land Combination and Site Plan Amendment 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the Land Combination and 
Site Plan Amendment Applications for properties located at approximately 5921 W. Ryan Road 
bearing Tax Key Nos. 899 9991 002, 899 9991 003 and 899 9991 005, and vacated service road lying 
north abutting Lots 1 and 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 1330, subject to the conditions in the draft 
resolutions. 
Property Owner: Spellman Trailers, Inc.  
Applicant: Elvin Spellman, Spellman Trailers, Inc.  
Property Address/Tax Key Number: Approximately 5921 West Ryan Road / 899 9991 002, 899 

9991 003 and 899 9991 005, and vacated service road 
Aldermanic District: District 4 
Agent: Leslie Scherrer Pella, PSG, Inc. 
Zoning District:  M-1, Limited Industrial District 
Use of Surrounding Properties: Vacant B-3 zoned property to the north and industrial to the 

south, east, and west 
Application Request: Approval of the proposed Land Combination and Site Plan 

Amendment applications 
Staff Planner: Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate 
 

Project Description/Analysis 
The applicant has filed a Land Combination and Site Plan Amendment Application to combine three 
existing properties and vacated service road into a single lot to allow for the construction of a 1,115 
square foot building addition and other site modifications, including a retaining wall and the addition 
of 1,135 square feet of greenspace. The additional greenspace serves to compensate for the building 
addition.  
 
Note there are no proposed changes to the use of these properties as part of this request.  
 
Land Combination 
The Land Combination is requesting to combine the three existing lots below and a vacated service 
road to create a single 2.71-acre parcel. The combination of these parcels along with the vacated 
service roads assist in improving the amount of greenspace currently existing on these individual 
properties. 
 

• Lot 1 of CSM No. 1330, 5921 W. Ryan Road; Tax Key No. 899 9991 002; 28,741 square feet 
• Lot 2 of CSM No. 1330; 5921 W. Ryan Road; Tax Key No. 899 9991 003; 33,117 square feet 
• Lot 4 of CSM No. 1330; 0 S. 60th Street; Tax Key No. 899 9991 005; 37,488 square feet 
• Vacated service road, 18,749 square feet 

 
Site Plan Amendment 

Item D.1. 



  

 2 

As stated, the Site Plan Amendment includes a building addition, retaining wall, landscaping, and 
adding greenspace to the site. The proposed landscape retaining wall is located in front or to the north 
of the building addition and matches the City’s retaining wall on the property.  
 
It should be noted that within the vacated right-of-way or service road area, there exists City owned 
signage, a landscape retaining wall, and landscape plantings. As such, staff recommends Common 
Council approval of a Signage and Landscape Easement, to be recorded with the Milwaukee County 
Register of Deeds, prior to issuance of a Building Permit. A draft of this easement document is 
attached. 
 
The Landscape Plan provided illustrates existing trees as well as four proposed evergreen trees, which 
are located along the front of the building addition as shown in green on Sheet L100. 
 
The building addition consists of stone, glass, composite siding, and EIFS. The peak height of the 
addition is 13’-4”, well under the 3-story, 40-foot maximum building height allowed under the M-1 
District.  
 
All M-1 District development standards are met, except for Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR). The three 
subject properties currently consist of mostly impervious surfaces and do not conform to the M-1 
District LSR of 0.4. Note Section 15-3.1008D. of the UDO does not allow for additions or 
enlargements with respect to yards, floor area ratio, or any other element of bulk that would increase 
the degree or extent of its nonconformity with respect to those bulk regulations. In this case, primarily 
with the acquisition of the previous vacation of adjacent right-of-way, the total amount of greenspace 
increases. As such, the degree of nonconformity for the site, albeit still not meeting current standards, 
is improving compared to the existing conditions.  
 
The three properties currently have an LSR of 0.170 (prior to the right-of-way vacation). Following the 
right-of-way vacation, land combination and site improvements, the resulting 2.71-acre parcel will 
have an LSR of 0.262. 
 
Generally, staff encourages further compliance with standards in these situations to the most 
reasonable extent practicable. As previously mentioned, the applicant is adding greenspace to 
compensate for the building addition. In the responses to staff comments (attached), the applicant has 
indicated that there is no additional opportunity for greenspace being added to the site without 
significantly impacting the business operations and historic use of the site.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Department of City Development staff recommends approval of the Land Combination and Site 
Plan Amendment Applications for properties located at approximately 5921 W. Ryan Road bearing Tax 
Key Nos. 899 9991 002, 899 9991 003 and 899 9991 005, and vacated service road, subject to the 
conditions in the draft resolutions. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
              Draft 2/13/2024 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A LAND  
COMBINATION FOR TAX KEY NOS. 899 9991 002, 899 9991 003 AND 899 9991 005, 

AND VACATED SERVICE ROAD LYING NORTH ABUTTING LOTS 1 AND 2 OF 
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 1330  

(APPROXIMATLEY 5921 WEST RYAN ROAD) 
(SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC., APPLICANT) 

              
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for 
approval of a proposed land combination for Spellman Trailers, Inc. to combine Lot 1, Lot 2, 
and Lot 4 of Certified Survey Map No. 1330 and vacated service road lying north abutting 
Lots 1 and 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 1330, located at approximately 5921 West Ryan 
Road, Tax Key Nos. 899 9991 002 (0.66 acres), 899 9991 003 (0.76 acres) and 899 9991 005 
(0.86 acres), and vacated service road (0.43 acres), for development of a building addition, 
properties more particularly described as follows: 
  

All of Lots 1, 2, and 4 of Certified Survey Map 1330, as recorded in Milwaukee 
County Register of Deeds office as document No. 4538848, being a part of the 
Northwest ¼ of Section 26, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, 
Milwaukee County Wisconsin; further described as follows:  commencing at the 
southwest corner of said Lot 4, thence North 00°24’28” West, 315.01 feet to the north 
line of vacated service road (also being the south line of W. Ryan Road); thence 
North 88°22’10” East along said north line, 374.98 feet; thence South 00°24’28” East, 
315.01 feet to the southeast corner of said Lot 2; thence South 88°22’10” West along 
the south line of said Certified Survey Map 1330, 374.98 feet to the point of 
beginning. Said parcels contains 118,095 S.F. (2.71 Acres) more or less; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed such application and 
recommended approval thereof and the Common Council having reviewed such application 
and Plan Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that 
such proposed land combination is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain 
conditions, all pursuant to §15-9.0312 of the Unified Development Ordinance, Land 
Combination Permits. 
   
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the proposed land combination for Spellman Trailers, 
Inc., as submitted by Spellman Trailers, Inc., as described above, be and the same is hereby 
approved, subject to the following conditions: 
 
 
 



SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC. – LAND COMBINATION 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-_____ 
Page 2 
 

1. Spellman Trailers Inc., successors and assigns shall pay to the City of Franklin the 
amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the 
City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Spellman 
Trailers, Inc. land combination project, within 30 days of invoice for same.  Any 
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, 
and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general 
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time. 

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Spellman Trailers, Inc. and the 
Spellman Trailers, Inc. land combination project for the properties located at 
approximately 5921 West Ryan Road (Tax Key Nos. 899 9991 002, 899 9991 003 
and 899 9991 005, and vacated service road):  (i) being in compliance with all 
applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) 
obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for 
and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval. 

3. Common Council approval of a Signage and Landscape Easement, to be recorded 
with the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, prior to issuance of a Building Permit. 

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



STATE OF WISCONSIN        CITY OF FRANKLIN      MILWAUKEE COUNTY                     
PLAN COMMISSION            Draft 2/13/2024 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN AMENDMENT FOR 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF A BUILDING ADDITION AND SITE 

MODIFICATIONS UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
APPROXIMATLEY 5921 WEST RYAN ROAD 

(SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC., 
APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER) 

 
 

WHEREAS, Spellman Trailers, Inc., having petitioned the City of Franklin for the 
approval of a Site Plan Amendment for the construction of a building addition and site 
modifications including a retaining wall and the addition of greenspace, upon property located 
at approximately 5921 West Ryan Road, zoned M-1 Limited Industrial District. The properties 
which are the subject of the application bear Tax Key Nos. 899 9991 002, 899 9991 003 and 
899 9991 005, and vacated service road lying north abutting Lots 1 and 2 of Certified Survey 
Map No. 1330. 

 
WHEREAS, the development proposes a building addition, retaining wall, and the 

addition of greenspace, and the Plan Commission having reviewed such proposal and having 
found same to be in compliance with the applicable terms and provisions of §15-3.0309 M-1 
Limited Industrial District of the Unified Development Ordinance and in furtherance of those 
express standards and purposes of a site plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the 
Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 

Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan Amendment for Spellman Trailers, Inc. dated February 
8, 2024, as submitted by Spellman Trailers, Inc., as described above, be and the same is hereby 
approved, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Spellman Trailers, Inc., successors and assigns and any developer of the Spellman 

Trailers, Inc. project shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development 
compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees 
of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Spellman Trailers, Inc. project, within 30 
days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the 
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from 
time to time. 

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Spellman Trailers, Inc. and the 
Spellman Trailers, Inc. project for the properties located at approximately 5921 West 
Ryan Road (Tax Key Nos. 899 9991 002, 899 9991 003 and 899 9991 005, and vacated 
service road): (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, 
rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals,  

 



SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC. - SITE PLAN  
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed 
and as presented for this approval. 

3. The Spellman Trailers, Inc. project shall be developed in substantial compliance with 
the plans dated February 8, 2024. 

4. Common Council approval of a Signage and Landscape Easement, to be recorded with 
the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, prior to issuance of a Building Permit. 

5. Final approval of grading, erosion control, storm water management, and utilities, as 
may be applicable, shall be granted by the Engineering Department prior to any land 
disturbance activities. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, that the Spellman Trailers, Inc. development as depicted upon the plans dated 
February 8, 2024, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein, shall be developed 
and constructed within one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, or this Resolution 
and all rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and void, without any further 
action by the City of Franklin; and the Site Plan Amendment for the properties located at 
approximately 5921 West Ryan Road (Tax Key Nos. 899 9991 002, 899 9991 003 and 899 
9991 005, and vacated service road), as previously approved, is amended accordingly.   

 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of 

Franklin this 22nd day of February, 2024. 
 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin 
this 22nd day of February, 2024. 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 
 
 

John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 

 
AYES  NOES  ABSENT   
 
 

 

 



SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC. - SITE PLAN  
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-  
Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
PLANS DATED ______________ 

 
ATTACHED HERETO 

 
 



249.98'

11
5.
00
'

11
5.
00
'

249.98'

12
5.
00
'

249.98'

15
0.
00
'

12
5.
00
'

249.99'

15
0.
00
'

125.00'125.00'

250.00'

26
5.
00
'

12
5.
00
'

12
5.
00
'

125.00'

26
5.
00
'

26
5.
00
'

125.00'

15
0.
00
'

26
5.
00
'

60
T
H

S
T

60
T
H

S
T

58
T
H

S
T

58
T
H

S
T

9550

5921 5825

City of Franklin Property Viewer

SEWRPC, Maxar, Microsoft, City of Franklin, WI

Parcel

2/15/2024, 9:51:15 AM
0 0.01 0.020.01 mi

0 0.02 0.040.01 km

1:1,128

Franklin User

City of Franklin, WI | Earthstar Geographics |



PSG, Inc. 
PSGwisconsin.com 

  
Spellman Trailers Office Addition 

Site Plan Amendment Application – Project Narrative 
 
 
Spellman Trailers, Inc. is a well established family business that has been in its current location 
for decades. At this time their growth requires an expansion of their office.  
 
The proposed project consists of a 1,115 square foot addition and some interior remodeling. 
The addition will be slab-on-grade construction with a concrete foundation, exterior walls of 
stone, glass, composite siding, and exterior insulation finish system. The addition, which will 
provide two new private offices, will be the same height as the existing office and have a 
membrane roofing system. Interior remodeling includes a new ADA toilet room and remodeling 
of the existing employee breakroom. Site work includes a landscape retaining wall, 
complimentary to the City’s adjacent landscape retaining wall, to accommodate lawn 
maintenance. The landscape plan also includes the addition of 1,135 SF of green space.  Existing 
site lighting is to remain.  
 
Site improvement costs are projected at $11,000 and the building addition and improvement 
value projected at $325,000. 
 
The Site Plan Amendment Application is submitted in conjunction with a revised land 
combination application combining parcels 899-9991-005, 899-9991-002, and 899-9991-003.  
 
 

 



����������	
��� ������������������������������������������ ������ !�������

"�������� ����#
$ �%�����&'(�)"�*"��*"�+*���,���� "��+�'�(�(��&	&#�#��'-����&'(� ��(

./0�1230�3450�2602�3/277�10�827897250:�23�4;:48250:�4;�.2170�<=>?@A=AB�CD6�028/�E26807�DC�72;:�5D�10�930:�D6�19475�9ED;�4;�5/0F45G�DC�H62;I74;�23�60C060;80:�4;�J�<=>?@A=A<�DC�5/43�K6:4;2;80@LMNOP�QRSTUVRVWXYZ[\]PP̂�_YZ�̂]P�̀MOabOM̂cYd�Y_�eM\P�fĉP�gZPM�_YZ�eŶ]�hP\ciPd̂cMO�Mdi�jYdZP\ciPd̂cMO�kPlPOYmnPd̂fLop�Qq r;:48250�5/0�5D527�s6D33�3450�2602�t4;�28603u�23�:0506v4;0:�1G2;�285927�D;>3450�1D9;:26G�396w0G�DC�5/0�E6DE065G@ 28603fLop�Wq x9156285�t>u�72;:�y/48/�8D;35459503�2;G�0z4354;s�:0:48250:E91748�356005�64s/53>DC>y2G{�72;:�7D8250:�y45/4;�5/0�9754v2506D2:�64s/53>DC>y2G�DC�0z4354;s�6D2:3{�5/0�64s/53>DC>y2G�DC�v2>|D6�954745403{�2;:�2;G�:0:48250:�E91748�E26I�2;:}D6�38/DD7�34502602@ > 28603fLop�Tq x9156285�t>u�72;:�y/48/{�23�2�E265�DC�2�E60w4D937G�2EE6Dw0::0w07DEv0;5�D6�72;:�:4w434D;{�y23�60306w0:�CD6�DE0;�3E280@ > 28603fLop�~q r;�5/0�8230�DC��x450�r;50;345G�2;:�F2E2845G�F27897254D;3��CD6�2E6DED30:�6034:0;5427�930{�39156285�t>u�5/0�72;:�E6DED30:�CD6;D;6034:0;5427�9303�D6r;�5/0�8230�DC��x450�r;50;345G�2;:�F2E2845G�F27897254D;3��CD6�2E6DED30:�;D;6034:0;5427�930{�39156285�t>u�5/0�72;:�E6DED30:CD6�6034:0;5427�9303@ > 28603fLop�Rq ��9273���230�x450��602� � 28603�77�72;:�2602�y45/�5/D30�;259627�603D9680�C0259603�23�:0386410:�4;��4w434D;�<=>�@A<AA�DC�5/43�K6:4;2;80�2;:�23�74350:�4;�.2170<=>?@A=A?�2;:�7G4;s�y45/4;�5/0�1230�3450�2602�t23�:0�;0:�4;�J�<=>?@A=ABu{�3/277�10�v023960:�607254w0�5D�028/�;259627�603D9680C025960�E6030;5@�./0�285927�72;:�2602�0;8DvE2330:�1G�028/�5GE0�DC�603D9680�43�5/0;�0;5060:�4;5D�5/0�8D79v;�DC�.2170�<=>?@A=A?�54570:���8603�DC��2;:�4;��03D9680�H025960@��./0�28602s0�DC�028/�;259627�603D9680�C025960�3/277�10�v9754E740:�1G�453603E0854w0�;259627�603D9680�E6D50854D;�352;:26:�t5D�10�3070850:�C6Dv�.2170�<=>�@A<AA�DC�5/43�K6:4;2;80�CD6�2EE74821702s6489759627{�6034:0;5427{�D6�;D;6034:0;5427��D;4;s�:4356485u�5D�:0506v4;0�5/0�2vD9;5�DC�603D9680�E6D50854D;�72;:�D6�260260�9460:�5D�10�I0E5�4;�DE0;�3E280�4;�D6:06�5D�E6D5085�5/0�603D9680�D6�C025960@�./0�39v�5D527�DC�277�603D9680�E6D50854D;�72;:D;�5/0�3450�0�9273�5/0�5D527�603D9680�E6D50854D;�72;:@�./0�5D527�603D9680�E6D50854D;�72;:�3/277�10�827897250:�23�4;:48250:�4;.2170�<=>?@A=A?@ LMNOP�QRSTUVRVTXYZ[\]PP̂�_YZ�̂]P�̀MOabOM̂cYd�Y_�hP\YbZaP�pZŶPâcYd��MdijM̂bZMO�hP\YbZaP�PM̂bZP pZŶPâcYd�f̂MdiMZi�eM\Pi��mYd��Ydcd��kc\̂ZcâL�mP��acZaOP�MmmOcaMNOP�\̂MdiMZi�_ZYn�LMNOP�QRS~UVQVV�_YZ�̂]P�̂�mP�Y_��Ydcd��ic\̂Zcâ�cd��]ca]�̂]PmMZaPO�c\�OYaM̂Pi� gaZP\�Y_��Mdi�cd�hP\YbZaP��PM̂bZPg�ZcabÔS�bZMOkc\̂Zcâ hP\ciPd̂cMOkc\̂Zcâ jYdShP\ciPd̂cMOkc\̂Zcâx500E�x7DE03�<A><�� A@AA A@�A A@�A ������������ �����������BA>?A� A@�= A@�= A@�A ������������ �������������?A� A@�A A@�= A@�A ������������ ������������DD:72;:3� HD60353�¡25960 A@�A A@�A A@�A ������������ �����������¢D9;s A@=A A@=A A@=A ������������ ������������2I03� �£D;:3 < < < ������������

9ED;�5/0�C280�DC�398/�F0654�0:�x96w0G�¡2E���./0�¤259627��03D9680�H0259603�4:0;54�0:�/0604;�9ED;�7D5¥3¦�¥;9v106¥3¦¦260�;D5�1230:�9ED;��07:�396w0G3@�r;�5/0�0w0;5�DC�C965/06�72;:�:4w434D;�D6�:0w07DEv0;5�DC�7D5¥3¦�¥;9v106¥3¦¦�y45/�2;G398/�¤259627��03D9680�H025960{�2�8DvE7050�¤�££�y45/��07:�396w0G3�43�60�9460:�CD6�324:�E26807@�§̈©ª«¬ª¬�®̄®̄°̄°�±²�³́¬µ�¶·µ�̄°̄°®̧̄ ̧¹º�»¼½¾¿À¼ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆÄÃÇÈÉÊ�ÉË�ÌÃÍÎ�ÏÈÇÎ�ÐÑÎÃÒ
º�»¼½¾¿À¼À¾ÂÃÄÅÆÄÃÇÈÉÊ�ÉË�ÇÓÎ�ÐÑÎÃ�ÉË�ÔÃÇÆÑÃÄ�ÕÎÍÉÆÑÅÎÍ�ÇÉ�ÌÎ�ÖÑÉÇÎÅÇÎ×Ò

ggovernatori
Text Box
2.71

ggovernatori
Text Box
0.00

ggovernatori
Text Box
0.00

ggovernatori
Text Box
0.00

ggovernatori
Text Box
2.71



����������	
��� ������������������������������������������ ������ !�������

"�������� ����#
$ �%�����&'(�)"�*"��*"�+*���,���� "��+�'�(�(��&	&#�#��'-����&'(� ��(

./012�3456784869:;<=>22?�@:;�?>2�A/1BC1/?D:E�:@�F2=:C;B2�G;:?2B?D:E�H/EIJ/?C;/1�F2=:C;B2K2/?C;2 G;:?2B?D:E�L?/EI/;I�M/=2I�NO:E�P:EDEQ�RD=?;DB?.SO2�TBD;B12�/OO1DB/012�=?/EI/;I�@;:U�./012�345V78388�@:;�?>2�?SO2�:@�W:EDEQ�ID=?;DB?�DE�X>DB>�?>2O/;B21�D=�1:B/?2IY ZB;2=�:@�H/EI�DE�F2=:C;B2�K2/?C;2ZQ;DBC1?5�C;/1RD=?;DB? F2=DI2E?D/1RD=?;DB? J:E5F2=DI2E?D/1RD=?;DB? [\]̂_̀ab c c c d�eeeeeeeeee[\fĝ_�hij_̂ c c c d�eeeeeeeeee[klggmnl̀opb c c c d�eeeeeeeeee[q_]l̀pm�hij_̂b c c c d�eeeeeeeeee[q_]l̀pmb�r\fĝ_l̀pmq_]l̀pmb c c c d�eeeeeeeeee[stsuv�wx\tywzx�{wtsxzs|t}�vu}~�sg]̀l�g��u�̂_b�g��v̀pm�op�w_bgî�_�k_̀]î_�]g��_�{̂g]_�]_m�}g]_��|p��gpmi�]op��]f_��̀l�il̀]ogpb�op�s̀�l_�c����������o��]�g�ĝ�aĝ_�p̀]î l̀�̂_bgî�_��_̀]î_b�̀̂_�n̂_b_p]�gp�]f_�b̀a_`̂_̀�g��l̀pm��gpl��]f_�agb]�̂_b]̂o�]o�_�̂_bgî�_�n̂g]_�]ogp�b]̀pm̀ m̂�bf̀ll��_�ib_m��kĝ�_�̀anl_��o���ggmnl̀op�̀pm��gip��ggml̀pmb�g��in��]f_�b̀a_�bǹ�_�gp�̀�ǹ �̂_l�g��l̀pm��]f_�̂_bgî�_�n̂g]_�]ogp�b]̀pm̀ m̂��gilm��_�c����fo�f�̂_n̂_b_p]b]f_�fo�f_̂�g��]f_�]�g�b]̀pm̀ m̂b�|p�ĝm_̂�]g�m_]_̂aop_�]f_�à�oaia�pia�_̂�g��m�_llop��ipo]b��fo�f�à���_�n_̂ao]]_m�gp�̀�ǹ �̂_l�g��l̀pm��gp_m�op�̀_̂bom_p]òl��gpop��mob]̂o�]��]f_�bo]_�op]_pbo]��̀pm��̀ǹ�o]���̀l�il̀]ogpb�b_]��ĝ]f�op�s̀�l_�c���������bf̀ll��_�n_̂�ĝa_m�./012�34567848V9:;<=>22?�@:;�?>2�A/1BC1/?D:E�:@�LD?2��E?2E=D?S�/EI�A/O/BD?S�@:;�F2=DI2E?D/1�R2�21:OU2E?L.�G�3� AZHANHZ.����J��ZH�F��N�F�R��J5L�.���G�J�LGZA� �̀̂_bs̀�_�h̀b_�\o]_�û_̀���̂ga�\]_n���op�s̀�l_�c����������eeeeeeeeee�il]onl_�����opoaia�tn_p�\ǹ�_�ẁ]og��t\w���b__�bn_�o���̂_b�om_p]òl��gpop��mob]̂o�]�t\w�b]̀pm̀ m̂���d�eeeeeeeeeex�ìlb���J��N��F��N�F�R��J5L�.���G�J�LGZA��[L.�G��� AZHANHZ.��J�.�MN�HRZMH��L�.��ZF�Z� �̀̂_bs̀�_�h̀b_�\o]_�û_̀���̂ga�\]_n���op�s̀�l_�c����������eeeeeeeeee\i�]̂̀�]�sg]̀l�w_bgî�_�{̂g]_�]ogp�v̀pm��̂ga�s̀�l_�c���������ĝ��opoaia�w_�iô_m�tp�\o]_�tn_p�\ǹ�_���̂ga�\]_n�c�̀�g�_���fo�f_�_̂�ob��̂_̀]_̂���eeeeeeeeeeex�ìlb�J�.�MN�HRZMH��L�.��ZF�Z�[L.�G�6� AZHANHZ.���Z ��N��J�.�R�JL�.¡�¡��HR��K�L�.�� ~�y�bs̀�_�}_]�hiolm̀�l_�\o]_�û_̀���̂ga�\]_n���̀�g�_���eeeeeeeeee�il]onl������̀�oaia�}_]�~_pbo]���}~���b__�bn_�o���̂_bom_p]òl�gpop��mob]̂o�]�}~�b]̀pm̀ m̂���d�eeeeeeeeeex�ìlb��Z ��N��J�.�R�JL�.¡�¡��HR��K�L�.��[L.�G�V� AZHANHZ.���Z ��N��¢F�LL�R�JL�.¡�¡��HR��K�L�.�� ~�y�bs̀�_�h̀b_�\o]_�û_̀���̂ga�\]_n���g��s̀�l_�c����������eeeeeeeeee�il]onl_�����̀�oaia�£̂gbb�~_pbo]���£~���b__�bn_�o���̂_bom_p�]òl��gpop��mob]̂o�]�£~�b]̀pm̀ m̂���d�eeeeeeeeeex�ìlb��Z ��N��¢F�LL�R�JL�.¡�¡��HR��K�L�.��[

¤�¥¦§̈©ª¦ª«¬®̄°®±²³́�³µ�¶²±·�̧́±·́¹²±º�́»�¬¼̄²±º�µ³½�¾·¹²»·́±²®�¿¹·¹À

ggovernatori
Text Box
0.00



����������	
��� ������������������������������������������ ������ !�������

"�������� ����#
$ �%�����&'(�)"�*"��*"�+*���,���� "��+�'�(�(��&	&#�#��'-����&'(� &�(

./012�345678489:;<=>?22@�A;<�@?2�B/1CD1/@E;F�;A�GE@2�HF@2F>E@I�/FJ�B/K/CE@I�A;<�L2>EJ2F@E/1�M2N21;KO2F@G.PQ�4R MP.PLSHTP�SUVHSWS�QPLSH..PM�M7W7>�XY�GH.PR Z[\[]_̂̀a�bca�defa]b�eg�h_ijklk�mab�Zan]jbo�pjadq�eg�rjba�sgtekrbau�v�_wexay�et�h_ijklk�zte]]�Zan]jbo�pjadq�eg�rjba�sgtekrbau�{�_wexay|}n�etqat�be�qabatkjna�bca�k_ijklk�~eet�_ta_�fcj�c�k_o�wa�uatkjbbaq�en�_�u_t�ad�eg�d_nq��enaq�jn�_�nenta]jqanbj_d��enjn�qj]btj�b��bca�]jba�jnban]jbo�_nq��_u_�jbo��_d�ld_bjen]�]ab�getbc�jn�̂_wda����v[�����]c_dd�wa�uatgetkaq[���������������������������������������������������������� ��������������¡���¢£¤�h_ijklk�¥atkjbbaq�¦deet�§ta_�get�_�̈ab_jd�©ljdqjn�|ª¤� meb�fjbc]b_nqjn��bca�utexj]jen]�eg�̂_wda����v[������ne�jnqjxjql_d�tab_jd�wljdqjn��jn�_no�eg�bca�geddefjn��qj]btj�b]]c_dd�ai�aaq�_�beb_d�eg��«�������te]]�]¬l_ta�gaab�eg�~eet�_ta_��jn�dlqjn��_dd�teegaq�_ta_[�¤�©���maj�cwetceeq�©l]jna]]�Zj]btj�b[¤�©�«�zanat_d�©l]jna]]�Zj]btj�b[�¤�©�v�®ekklnjbo�©l]jna]]�Zj]btj�b[�¤�©���̄j�cf_o�©l]jna]]�Zj]btj�b[°¤�meb�fjbc]b_nqjn���_no�ebcat�utexj]jen�eg�bcj]�±tqjn_n�a��ne�]ua�j_d�l]a�uatkjb��]ua�j_d�ai�aubjen�et�x_tj_n�a�k_owa�_uutexaq�et��t_nbaq�bc_b�feldq�_ddef�_�tab_jd�wljdqjn��be�ai�aaq�bca�]j�a�djkjb]�eg�bcj]�]lwu_t_�t_uc�s�y�_nq�nenen�engetkjn��l]a�et�]btl�blta�k_o�wa�aiu_nqaq�jn�_no�k_nnat�bc_b�feldq�jn�ta_]a�jb]�nen�engetk_�a�fjbc�bcadjkjb]�eg�]lwu_t_�t_uc�s�y[ ./012�345678484:;<=>?22@�A;<�@?2�B/1CD1/@E;F�;A�GE@2�HF@2F>E@I�/FJ�B/K/CE@I�A;<�T;F<2>EJ2F@E/1�M2N21;KO2F@G.PQ�3R BU²BW²U.P�SHTHSWS�LP³WHLPM�²UTMGBUQPGWLYUBPR_̂̀a�©_]a�rjba�§ta_�sgtek�rbau���jn�̂_wda����v[���«y|´́´́´́´́´́�hldbjuda�wo�hjnjklk�µ_nq]�_ua�rltg_�a_̈bje�sµr̈y�s]aa�]ua�j¶���enjn��qj]btj�b�µr̈�]b_nq_tqy|·�́́´́´́´́´́¬̧l_d]�SHTHSWS�LP³WHLPM�XT5GH.P�²UTMGBUQPGWLYUBP�¹ _�ta]G.PQ�ºR BU²BW²U.P�TP.�»WH²MU»²P�GH.P�ULPUR_̂̀a�©_]a�rjba�§ta_�sgtek�rbau���jn�̂_wda����v[���«y|´́´́´́´́´́rlwbt_�b�̂eb_d�̈a]elt�a�¥teba�bjen�µ_nq�gtek�̂_wda����v[���vy�et�hjnjklk�̈a¬ljtaq�µ_nq]�_ua�rltg_�a�sgtekrbau���_wexay��fcj�caxat�j]��ta_bat|���́́´́´́´́´́¬̧l_d]�TP.�»WH²MU»²P�GH.P�ULPU�¹ _�ta]G.PQ�6R BU²BW²U.P�SUVHSWS�TP.�Y²XXL�ULPU�¼HP²MXY�GH.PR_̂̀a�mab�©ljdq_wda�rjba�§ta_�sgtek�rbau�«�_wexay|´́´́´́´́´́hldbjuda�wo�h_ijklk�mab�¦deet�§ta_�̈_bje�sm¦§̈ys]aa�]ua�j¶��nenta]jqanbj_d��enjn��qj]btj�b�m¦§̈�]b_n�q_tqy|�·�́́´́´́´́´́¬̧l_d]�SUVHSWS�TP.�Y²XXL�ULPU�¼HP²M�XY�GH.P¹ _�ta]G.PQ�9R BU²BW²U.P�SUVHSWS�½LXGG�Y²XXL�ULPU�¼HP²MXY�GH.PR_̂̀a�©_]a�rjba�§ta_�sgtek�rbau���eg�̂_wda����v[���«y|´́´́´́´́´́hldbjuda�wo�h_ijklk�zte]]�¦deet�§ta_�̈_bje�sz¦§̈ys]aa�]ua�j¶��nenta]jqanbj_d��enjn��qj]btj�b�z¦§̈�]b_n�q_tqy|�·�́́´́´́´́´́¬̧l_d]�SUVHSWS�½LXGG�Y²XXL�ULPU�¼HP²M�XYGH.P�¹ _�ta]G.PQ�4R MP.PLSHTP�SUVHSWS�QPLSH..PM�Y²XXL�ULPUXY�GH.PR_̂̀a�bca�defa]b�eg�h_ijklk�mab�¦deet�§ta_�pjadq�egrjba�sgtek�rbau�v_wexay�et�h_ijklk�zte]]�¦deet�§ta_�pjadq�eg�rjbasgtek�rbau�{�_wexay| _�ta]

ggovernatori
Text Box
2.71

ggovernatori
Text Box
.3

ggovernatori
Text Box
1.90

ggovernatori
Text Box
0.85

ggovernatori
Text Box
1.62

ggovernatori
Text Box
0.42

ggovernatori
Text Box
1.14

ggovernatori
Text Box
1.14

ggovernatori
Text Box

ggovernatori
Text Box
0.81

ggovernatori
Text Box
2.71

ggovernatori
Text Box
1.90

ggovernatori
Text Box
2.71

ggovernatori
Text Box
0.81



����������	
��� ������������������������������������������ ������ !�������

"�������� ����#
$ �%�����&'(�)"�*"��*"�+*���,���� "��+�'�(�(��&	&#�#��'-����&'(� (�(

./012�3456784849:;<=>22?�@:;�?>2�A/1BC1/?D:E�:@�FD?2�GE?2E=D?H�/EI�A/J/BD?H�@:;�K:E;2=DI2E?D/1�L2M21:JN2E?OPQRSTURV�WVXQRSX�YZ�[\]̂_̀�abW�cdeTcQc�fbbW�dWVd�TgXhQdWV�aVVSij Okkkkkkkkkk�XhQdWV�aVVSi

ggovernatori
Text Box
49,658 



1 
 

The Response to Staff Comments is included in blue font in the document 
below. 
 
City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 
 

Date: January 28, 2024 
To:  Leslie Scherrer Pella. PSG, Inc. 
From: Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate 
RE: Staff Comments – Land Combination & Site Plan Amendment – Approximately 5921 West Ryan Road 
 
 
Please be advised that City Staff has reviewed the above applications. Department comments are as follows for 
the Land Combination and Site Plan Amendment Applications submitted by Spellman Trailers, Inc. on January 
8, 2024.  
 
Department of City Development 
Land Combination 
1. It is recommended that the Land Combination Exhibit include the acquisition of right-of-way. Included in 

revised land combination exhibit provided 2.8.24. 
2. It is also recommended that the following information be included on the Land Combination Exhibit (See 

Section 15-9.0312A.2.): 
a. Address of each of the parcels to be combined; the Milwaukee County tax key number of each 

parcel; Included in revised land combination exhibit provided 2.8.24. 
i. 5921 W. Ryan Road; Tax Key No. 899 9991 002 

ii. 5921 W. Ryan Road; Tax Key No. 899 9991 003 
iii. 0 S. 60th Street; Tax Key No. 899 9991 005 

b. the zoning districts within which each parcel to be combined lies;  
i. M-1 Limited Industrial District Included in revised land combination exhibit provided 2.8.24. 

c. the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan Land Use District designation of each parcel to be 
combined;  

i. Industrial Included in revised submission provided 2.8.24. 
d. the present use of the parcels; Included in revised land combination exhibit provided 2.8.24. 
e. the proposed use of the parcels; and Included in revised land combination exhibit provided 2.8.24. 
f. the area of each parcel to be combined (acres/square feet). Included in revised land combination 

exhibit provided 2.8.24. 
 

Site Plan Amendment 
3. Please complete and submit the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculation Calculations found within Division 

15-3.0500 of the UDO. Submitted 2.8.24 
4. Please provide the following information on the site plans in accordance with Section 15-7.0103 of the 

UDO. 
a. Owner's and/or Developer's Name and Address. Owner's and/or developer's name and address noted 

on the Site Plan. Included in revised plans provided 2.8.24. 
b. Building Height. Height of all building(s), including both principal and accessory, expressed in both 

feet and stories. Included in revised building elevations provided 2.8.24. 

https://ecode360.com/33224849
https://ecode360.com/33224849
https://ecode360.com/33226189


2 
 

c. On Sheet C103, please show building setbacks for the combined parcel. Included in revised C103 
provided 2.8.24. 

5. On a site plan or a separate landscape plan, please provide information regarding proposed plantings as 
required by Section 15-7.0301 of the UDO. Included in revised L100 provided 2.8.24. 

6. Please dimension parking spaces. Note that parking spaces shall be not less than 180 square feet nor less 
than nine feet in width. Included in revised C103 provided 2.8.24. 

7. Does the quantity of existing and proposed landscaping conform to Table 15-5.0302 of the UDO?  
a. According to Code 15-5.0301.B.2, Exemptions to the Required Landscaping include additions to 

Existing Buildings Where the Total Floor Area is not Increased More than 10%.  The addition for 
this project increases the floor area by 7.8% (see calculations on L100) 

b. Correspondence between Franklin Planning Department Staff (8-9-23 to 8-31-23) confirmed this 
exemption applies. The correspondence is attached to this response. 

c. Ignoring the exemption, the site does not meet the minimum requirements for Evergreens and 
Decorative Trees.  However Code 15-5.0302.B.5 and 15-5.0302.B.6 state that in the event decorative 
trees, shrubs or evergreens are not appropriate for a development, then those types may be replaced 
by one shade tree for every one required decorative tree/evergreen. In the case of evergreens, 
replacement is limited to 70%.  This development has 33 shade trees (counted conservatively).  With 
2 decorative trees and 6 required, there are enough shade trees to supplement the difference.  With 4 
evergreen trees and 6 required, there are enough shade trees to supplement the difference without 
exceeding the 70% replacement limit.  All this said, as noted in items 7a and 7b above, this 
development is exempt from this requirement. 

 
8. Staff recommends that the greenspace area be enlarged or additional areas of the site be reviewed and 

considered for greenspace to achieve the allowed Alternative Minimum LSR of 0.30. This along with the 
addition of plantings as required below would bring the site into conformance with the M-1 District 
standards.  

 
“Alternative Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio. Use of the Alternative Minimum Landscape Surface 
Ratio shall require a minimum caliper of three inch shade trees, a minimum caliper of two inch 
decorative trees and a minimum size of six foot evergreens, along with an increase by 20% of the 
minimum quantity of plantings required by Table 15-5.0302. If a bufferyard is present, then the required 
quantity increases by 30%.” 
 
This issue was addressed at length with City of Franklin Planning Department and the Engineering 
Department along with the City Attorney.  Correspondence on this matter is attached at the end of this 
document.  It states “City Development staff consulted with the City Attorney and researched previous 
approvals as well as the zoning ordinance at the time of these approvals.  Per the 1986 zoning ordinance, 
the Landscape Surface Ratio was not a requirement in the M-1 zoning district, therefore, this Land 
Combination is not required to comply with the current LSR.” 
 
In the correspondence, it was further clarified that the Owner will be improving the LSR with this 
project but understands based on this correspondence that they are not required to comply with the 
current LSR and are also exempt from meeting the requirements on specific numbers of trees and 
shrubs.  City Planning confirmed that statement “correct”. 
 
The existing LSR is .170.  The proposed LSR is .262, a marked improvement from the current 
conditions.  The vacation of the right of way will add green space to the property.  Furthermore, the 
plans propose increasing green space on the 5921 W. Ryan Road parcel in an amount greater than the 
greenspace lost due to the proposed addition.   

https://ecode360.com/33226244
https://ecode360.com/33226061


3 
 

There is not an opportunity to add greenspace beyond this without causing great hardship to Spellman 
Trailer’s business operations.  Due to the nature of their business (semi-trailer sales, service and parts) 
they need significant space for parking and circulation of semi-trailers.  Additional green space would 
mean the loss of 7-10 trailer spaces, which represents approximately 30% of total trailer spaces. 
 
With the City Development and City Attorney’s prior comments about this project being exempt from 
the LSR and minimum plantings requirements, plus the marked improvement in the LSR, we ask the 
City approve this site plan amendment and land combination applications. 
 

 
Signage and Landscape Easement 

1. The Mayor’s and City Clerk’s names need to be updated on the draft easement document. The Mayor is 
John R. Nelson and the Clerk is Shirley J. Roberts. Note that if the City originally drafted this easement, 
staff will make these corrections.     

2. Any Engineering Department and City Attorney comments will be forwarded as soon as they are 
received.  

 
Engineering Department 
9. Please have the tax key numbers shown on the three parcels that will be combined. 
10. Please furnish to the City a copy of the recorded land combination from the Register of Deeds.  
11. Engineering staff may need to revisit the easement (attached) for revision. This is part of the agreement 

between the City and the owner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 



5 
 



6 
 

 
 





W. RYAN ROAD
60

th 
ST

RE
ET

*TREE TO REMAIN*

*TREE TO REMAIN*

)ORNER 9I*E
9ET(A)1

,RONT
9ET(A)1

SHEET:

CLIENT:

PROJECT MANAGER:
PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET NUMBER:

DATE:

RELEASE:

CLIENT:

PROJECT:

LOCATION:

REVISIONS:

# DATE DESCRIPTION

NORTH ARROW:

SEAL:

SCALE:

C100

GLG
23.0310

1
----
----
----
----
----
----

2/8/2024 City Comments
----
----
----
----
----
----

----
----
----
----
----
----

11-20-2023

SPELLMAN TRAILER

CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE

COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

DRAFT PLANS

IF NOT ONE INCH ADJUST SCALE
ACCORDINGLY

00 10' 20'

SPELLMAN DEMO

SPELLMAN TRAILER

CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE

COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

DRAFT PLANS

IF NOT ONE INCH ADJUST SCALE
ACCORDINGLY

SPELLMAN DEMO

OWNER:
SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC
5921 W RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
414-421-3200

PROJECT MANAGER:
PSG, INC
LESLIE SCHERRER PELLA
448 FALCON RIDGE DRIVE, SUITE B
BURLINGTON, WI 53105
262-758-6064

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE LANDSCAPE LIGHTING, AND DECORATIVE STONE DISPOSE OF OFFSITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING ABANDON AC UNIT.  DISPOSE OF OFFSITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE & DISPOSE OF BUSHES. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE LANDSCAPE LIGHTING, AND DECORATIVE STONE DISPOSE OF OFFSITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 EXISTING PARKING (9' x 18')

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.. CONSULT WITH OWNER TO DETERMINE A SAFE STORAGE LOCATION OF ITEMS SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT TO BE SALVAGED FOR OWNER REUSE. EXERCISE CARE DURING REMOVAL AND TRANSPORT TO PREVENT DAMAGE.   3. THE UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD UTILITY INFORMATION AS SHOWN HEREON IS BASED, IN PART, UPON INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY COMPANIES, LOCAL MUNICIPALITY, PROPERTY OWNER, AND DIGGERS HOTLINE.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT BE GUARANTEED NOR CERTIFIED TO. 4. GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR THEIR SUB CONTRACTORS SHALL APPLY FOR AND OBTAIN ALL THEIR REQUIRED PERMITS AND APPROVALS PRIOR TO THE START OF THEIR WORK. CONSULT WITH AND OBTAIN FROM ENGINEER COPIES OF ENGINEERING DESIGN APPROVAL PERMITS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WDNR, STATE OR LOCAL PLUMBING, WDOT, COUNTY, AND STORM WATER MANAGEMENT.  5. GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR THEIR SUB CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT DIGGER'S HOTLINE TO ALLOW THEM SUFFICIENT TIME TO LOCATE EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.  6. GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR THEIR SUB CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING THEIR WORK WITH ALL OTHER CONTRACTORS. GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR THEIR SUB CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING THEIR WORK WITH ALL OTHER CONTRACTORS. 7. GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR THEIR SUB CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING OWNERSHIP OF AND COORDINATING THE DEMOLITION AND / OR RELOCATION / ELEVATION ADJUSTMENT OF ALL EXISTING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE UTILITIES WITHIN GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR THEIR SUB CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING OWNERSHIP OF AND COORDINATING THE DEMOLITION AND / OR RELOCATION / ELEVATION ADJUSTMENT OF ALL EXISTING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE UTILITIES WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS THAT MAY BE AFFECTED BY TOPOGRAPHICAL CHANGES, UTILITIES, OR OTHER PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION ON THE PROJECT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ELECTRICAL / FIBER OPTIC / TELEPHONE / CABLE / GAS / WATER / SANITARY / STORM. DEMOLITION / RELOCATION OF THIS UTILITY WORK MUST BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL STATE, FEDERAL, LOCAL, AND UTILITY OWNER REGULATIONS.  8. FOR ALL WORK, GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR THEIR SUB CONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR REVIEWING BID DOCUMENTS, VERIFYING THE VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS, AND INCLUDE IN THEIR CONTRACT THE RELOCATION OF SAID UTILITIES (NOTED OR NOT ON THE BID DOCUMENTS) AS NECESSARY TO PROVIDE PROPER DEPTH/CLEARANCE PER UTILITY OWNER'S REQUIREMENTS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEGETATION TO BE REMOVED & DISPOSED OF OFFSITE. IF SUITABLE FOR REUSE, TOPSOIL TO BE STOCKPILED. UNUSED & UNSUITABLE TOPSOIL TO BE REMOVED OFFSITE. TOPSOIL THICKNESS MAY VARY. REFER TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE & BASE MATERIAL TO BE REMOVED TO SUB-BASE & DISPOSED OF OFFSITE. CONCRETE & BASE THICKNESS MAY VARY. REMOVE TO NEAREST JOINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR & GRUB VEGETATION, INCLUDING TREES, UNLESS THE TREES ARE SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT TO REMAIN. REMOVE ROOTS & STUMPS.  ALL MATERIAL SHALL BE DISPOSED OF OFFSITE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT FULL DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING & FOUNDATION TO BE RAZED. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL & STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAST SAVED DATE: 2/7/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE/TIME: 2/7/2024 11:58 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME: d:\milwaukee_co\franklin_city\Priv\230310  spellman trailers lsr\Design\230310 Spellman Trailer Expansion.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED BY: GREGORY L. GOVERNATORI, PE, CFM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1224 S. Pine Street Burlington, Wisconsin    53105 kapurinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
all in



W. RYAN ROAD
60

th 
ST

RE
ET

5921 W. RYAN ROAD
EXISTING SPELLMAN
TRAILER BUILDING

FFE 706.29

PROPOSED ADDITION
1094 SF

FFE 706.29

�����

�����

�����

�����

����

�����

����

�����

)ORNER 9I*E
9ET(A)1

,RONT
9ET(A)1

�
)���

SHEET:

CLIENT:

PROJECT MANAGER:
PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET NUMBER:

DATE:

RELEASE:

CLIENT:

PROJECT:

LOCATION:

REVISIONS:

# DATE DESCRIPTION

NORTH ARROW:

SEAL:

SCALE:

C101

GLG
23.0310

1
----
----
----
----
----
----

2/8/2024 City Comments
----
----
----
----
----
----

----
----
----
----
----
----

11-20-2023

SPELLMAN TRAILER

CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE

COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

DRAFT PLANS

IF NOT ONE INCH ADJUST SCALE
ACCORDINGLY

00 10' 20'

SPELLMAN SITE
PLAN

SPELLMAN TRAILER

CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE

COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

DRAFT PLANS

IF NOT ONE INCH ADJUST SCALE
ACCORDINGLY

SPELLMAN SITE
PLAN

OWNER:
SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC
5921 W RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
414-421-3200

PROJECT MANAGER:
PSG, INC
LESLIE SCHERRER PELLA
448 FALCON RIDGE DRIVE, SUITE B
BURLINGTON, WI 53105
262-758-6064

SITE DATA (LSR)

EXISTING PROPOSED
AREA (Lots 1,2,& 4)       99,076 SF            118,095 SF

IMPERVIOUS AREA
BUILDING 13,956 SF           15,050 SF
PAVEMENT 68,231 SF       71,869 SF
SIDEWALK 340 SF              244 SF
LANDSCAPE 16,843 SF 30,956 SF

LSR .170 .262

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONCRETE SIDEWALK (LIGHT DUTY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 EXISTING PARKING (1 ADA) 9' x 18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 EXISTING PARKING (9' x 18')

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SPLIT FACED LANDSCAPE WALL TO MATCH EXISTING WALL (0"-30") TOP OF WALL 704.0 BOTTOM OF WALL - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ARBORVITAE THUJA OCCIDENTALIS 'HOLMSTRUP') (QUANTITY 4) OR EQUAL AS SELECTED BY OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION  (NOT SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS) TO BE RESTORED WITH MINIMUM 4" TOPSOIL, SEED, FERTILIZER, AND MULCH (TYP). USE SALVAGED TOPSOIL OR IMPORT TOPSOIL IF REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONCRETE (LIGHT DUTY) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAST SAVED DATE: 2/7/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE/TIME: 2/7/2024 11:58 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME: d:\milwaukee_co\franklin_city\Priv\230310  spellman trailers lsr\Design\230310 Spellman Trailer Expansion.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED BY: GREGORY L. GOVERNATORI, PE, CFM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1224 S. Pine Street Burlington, Wisconsin    53105 kapurinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
all in

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING REQUIREMENTS:(M-1) (M-1) PARKING REQUIREMENTS COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS LIGHT INDUSTRY 1/1000 SQUARE FEET GFA CONTRACTOR SHOP 1/1000 SQUARE FEET GFA 15,050 GFA = 15 SPACES REQUIRED (1 ADA)      17 SPACES EXISTING (1 ADA) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: M-1 Limited Industrial District MINIMUM LANDSCAPE SURFACE RATION (LSR)   (0.4) (0.4) ALTERNATIVE LSR WITH MITIGATION     (0.3) (0.3) MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA RATIO (GFAR)   0.42(A) 0.42(A) SETBACKS MINIMUM FRONT     30 FEET 30 FEET MINIMUM SIDE      20 FEET 20 FEET MINIMUM SIDE (CORNER LOT)   30 FEET 30 FEET MINIMUM REAR      15 FEET 15 FEET MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT   40 FEET  (Max. Existing 20 feet) 40 FEET  (Max. Existing 20 feet) (Max. addition 13' - 4") All Single Story ACCESSORY HEIGHT     25 FEET25 FEET



W. RYAN ROAD
60

th 
ST

RE
ET

5921 W. RYAN ROAD
EXISTING SPELLMAN
TRAILER BUILDING

FFE 706.29

PROPOSED ADDITION
1094 SF

FFE 706.29

)ORNER 9I*E
9ET(A)1

,RONT
9ET(A)1

�
)���

SHEET:

CLIENT:

PROJECT MANAGER:
PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET NUMBER:

DATE:

RELEASE:

CLIENT:

PROJECT:

LOCATION:

REVISIONS:

# DATE DESCRIPTION

NORTH ARROW:

SEAL:

SCALE:

C102

GLG
23.0310

1
----
----
----
----
----
----

2/8/2024 City Comments
----
----
----
----
----
----

----
----
----
----
----
----

11-20-2023

SPELLMAN TRAILER

CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE

COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

DRAFT PLANS

IF NOT ONE INCH ADJUST SCALE
ACCORDINGLY

00 10' 20'

SPELLMAN GEC

SPELLMAN TRAILER

CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE

COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

DRAFT PLANS

IF NOT ONE INCH ADJUST SCALE
ACCORDINGLY

SPELLMAN GEC

Finished Grade

Crushed Stone Leveling Pad

0"
-3

0"

3/4" Crushed
Stone Backfill

Cap

4" Perforated PVC Drainage
Tile Wrapped in Filter Fabric

OWNER:
SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC
5921 W RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
414-421-3200

PROJECT MANAGER:
PSG, INC
LESLIE SCHERRER PELLA
448 FALCON RIDGE DRIVE, SUITE B
BURLINGTON, WI 53105
262-758-6064

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONCRETE SIDEWALK (LIGHT DUTY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 EXISTING PARKING (1 ADA) 9' x 18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 EXISTING PARKING (9' x 18')

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SPLIT FACED LANDSCAPE WALL TO MATCH EXISTING WALL (0"-30") TOP OF WALL 704.0 BOTTOM OF WALL - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ARBORVITAE THUJA OCCIDENTALIS 'HOLMSTRUP') (QUANTITY 4) OR EQUAL AS SELECTED BY OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION  (NOT SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS) TO BE RESTORED WITH MINIMUM 4" TOPSOIL, SEED, FERTILIZER, AND MULCH (TYP). USE SALVAGED TOPSOIL OR IMPORT TOPSOIL IF REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONCRETE (LIGHT DUTY) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAST SAVED DATE: 2/7/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE/TIME: 2/7/2024 11:59 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME: d:\milwaukee_co\franklin_city\Priv\230310  spellman trailers lsr\Design\230310 Spellman Trailer Expansion.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED BY: GREGORY L. GOVERNATORI, PE, CFM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1224 S. Pine Street Burlington, Wisconsin    53105 kapurinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
all in

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U GRAVITY WALL SECTION TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" THICKNESS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBGRADE COMPACTED TO 95% OF ASTM D-1557 (MODIFIED PROCTOR) WITHIN -2 TO +4% OF THE OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U CONCRETE SIDEWALK (LIGHT DUTY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" BASE AGGREGATE DENSE 1-1/4 INCH



�
)���

© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS 

18,749 S.F. (Vacated ROW)
4773 SF Asphalt
13976 SF L.S.

W. RYAN ROAD

60
th 

ST
RE

ET

EXITEXIT

EXIT

CSM NO. 1330
LOT 2

5921 W RYAN ROAD
TAX KEY #899-9991-003

0.76 ACRES (33,117 SF)
27,466 SF Gravel

5659 SF L.S.

CSM NO. 1330
LOT 4

0 S 60TH STREET
TAX KEY #899-9991-008

0.86 ACRES (37,488 SF)
34,223 GRAVEL

3,274 SF L.S.

CSM NO. 1330
LOT 1

5921 W RYAN ROAD
TAX KEY #899-9991-002

0.66 ACRES (28,741 SF)
13,956 BLD

340 SW
6542 Pavement

7910 SF L.S.

5921 W. RYAN ROAD
EXISTING SPELLMAN
TRAILER BUILDING

FFE 706.29

PROPOSED ADDITION
1094 SF

FFE 706.29

�����

�����

�����

�����

����

�����

����

�����

)ORNER 9I*E
9ET(A)1

,RONT
9ET(A)1

REAR
9ET(A)1

9I*E
9ET(A)1

SHEET:

CLIENT:

PROJECT MANAGER:
PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET NUMBER:

DATE:

RELEASE:

CLIENT:

PROJECT:

LOCATION:

REVISIONS:

# DATE DESCRIPTION

NORTH ARROW:

SEAL:

SCALE:

C103

GLG
23.0310

1
----
----
----
----
----
----

2/8/2024 City Comments
----
----
----
----
----
----

----
----
----
----
----
----

11-20-2023

SPELLMAN TRAILER

CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE

COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

DRAFT PLANS

IF NOT ONE INCH ADJUST SCALE
ACCORDINGLY

00 20' 40'

SPELLMAN FULL
SITE

SPELLMAN TRAILER

CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE

COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

DRAFT PLANS

IF NOT ONE INCH ADJUST SCALE
ACCORDINGLY

SPELLMAN FULL
SITE

ZONING: M-1 Limited Industrial District

Minimum Landscape Surface Ration (LSR) (0.4)
Alternative LSR with Mitigation (0.3)
Maximum Gross Floor Area Ratio (GFAR) 0.42(a)

SETBACKS
Minimum Front 30 feet
Minimum Side 20 feet
Minimum Side (Corner lot) 30 feet
Minimum Rear 15 feet

SITE DATA (LSR)

EXISTING PROPOSED
AREA (Lots 1,2,& 4)       99,076 SF            118,095 SF

IMPERVIOUS AREA
BUILDING 13,956 SF           15,050 SF
PAVEMENT 68,231 SF       71,869 SF
SIDEWALK 340 SF              244 SF
LANDSCAPE 16,843 SF 30,956 SF

LSR .170 .262

OWNER:
SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC
5921 W RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
414-421-3200

PROJECT MANAGER:
PSG, INC
LESLIE SCHERRER PELLA
448 FALCON RIDGE DRIVE, SUITE B
BURLINGTON, WI 53105
262-758-6064

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION  (NOT SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS) TO BE RESTORED WITH MINIMUM 4" TOPSOIL, SEED, FERTILIZER, AND MULCH (TYP). USE SALVAGED TOPSOIL OR IMPORT TOPSOIL IF REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONCRETE (LIGHT DUTY) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONCRETE SIDEWALK (LIGHT DUTY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 EXISTING PARKING (1 ADA) 9' x 18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 EXISTING PARKING (9' x 18')

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 PARKING (1 ADA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 EXISTING  PARKING (1 ADA) 9' x 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1135 SQUARE FEET OF GRAVEL TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED WITH 4" TOPSOIL SEED AND MATTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SPLIT FACED LANDSCAPE WALL TO MATCH EXISTING WALL (0"-30") TOP OF WALL 704.0 BOTTOM OF WALL - MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ARBORVITAE THUJA OCCIDENTALIS 'HOLMSTRUP') (QUANTITY 4) OR EQUAL AS SELECTED BY OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAST SAVED DATE: 2/7/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE/TIME: 2/7/2024 11:59 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME: d:\milwaukee_co\franklin_city\Priv\230310  spellman trailers lsr\Design\230310 Spellman Trailer Expansion.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED BY: GREGORY L. GOVERNATORI, PE, CFM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1224 S. Pine Street Burlington, Wisconsin    53105 kapurinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
all in



�
)���

18,749 S.F. (Vacated ROW)
4773 SF Asphalt
13976 SF L.S.

W. RYAN ROAD

60
th 

ST
RE

ET

EXITEXIT

EXIT

CSM NO. 1330
LOT 2

5921 W RYAN ROAD
TAX KEY #899-9991-003

0.76 ACRES (33,117 SF)
27,466 SF Gravel

5659 SF L.S.

CSM NO. 1330
LOT 4

0 S 60TH STREET
TAX KEY #899-9991-008

0.86 ACRES (37,488 SF)
34,223 GRAVEL

3,274 SF L.S.

CSM NO. 1330
LOT 1

5921 W RYAN ROAD
TAX KEY #899-9991-002

0.66 ACRES (28,741 SF)
13,956 BLD

340 SW
6542 Pavement

7910 SF L.S.

5921 W. RYAN ROAD
EXISTING SPELLMAN
TRAILER BUILDING

FFE 706.29

PROPOSED ADDITION
1094 SF

FFE 706.29

�����

�����

�����

�����

����

�����

����

�����

)ORNER 9I*E
9ET(A)1

,RONT
9ET(A)1

REAR
9ET(A)1

9I*E
9ET(A)1

SHEET:

CLIENT:

PROJECT MANAGER:
PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET NUMBER:

DATE:

RELEASE:

CLIENT:

PROJECT:

LOCATION:

REVISIONS:

# DATE DESCRIPTION

NORTH ARROW:

SEAL:

SCALE:

L100

GLG
23.0310

1
----
----
----
----
----
----

2/8/2024 City Comments
----
----
----
----
----
----

----
----
----
----
----
----

11-20-2023

SPELLMAN TRAILER

CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE

COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

DRAFT PLANS

IF NOT ONE INCH ADJUST SCALE
ACCORDINGLY

00 20' 40'

SPELLMAN
LANDSCAPE RATIOS

SPELLMAN TRAILER

CITY OF FRANKLIN,
MILWAUKEE

COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

DRAFT PLANS

IF NOT ONE INCH ADJUST SCALE
ACCORDINGLY

SPELLMAN
LANDSCAPE RATIOS

ZONING: M-1 Limited Industrial District

Minimum Landscape Surface Ration (LSR) (0.4)
Alternative LSR with Mitigation (0.3)
Maximum Gross Floor Area Ratio (GFAR) 0.42(a)

SETBACKS
Minimum Front 30 feet
Minimum Side 20 feet
Minimum Side (Corner lot) 30 feet
Minimum Rear 15 feet

OWNER:
SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC
5921 W RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
414-421-3200

PROJECT MANAGER:
PSG, INC
LESLIE SCHERRER PELLA
448 FALCON RIDGE DRIVE, SUITE B
BURLINGTON, WI 53105
262-758-6064

Manufacturing Planting Requirements (Alternative Minimum Ratio)
TYPE Planting Size Min. Qty. Required  Existing Qty Proposed Qty
Canopy/Shade Tree 3" Caliper 1 per 10 Parking spaces     2 (6 min) 33 33
Evergreens 6 Feet Tall 1 per 10 Parking spaces 2 (6 min) 0 4
Decorative Trees 2" Caliper 1 per 10 Parking spaces 2 (6 min) 2 2
Shrubs 3 Feet Tall 1 per 10 Parking spaces 2 (6 min) 15 13

�� 9NX[HY

.E*-E

.E*-E

*KIUXGZO\K
TXKK

TREE

TREE

��	TREE

TREE
2INE

� TREE

TREE

TREE

LANDSCAPE EXEMPTION

15-5.0301 (b.) additions to buildings where the
total floor area is not increased by more than
10%.

Existing Building  = 13,956
Addition = 1098 sf
Total Increase = 7.8%

SITE DATA (LSR)

EXISTING PROPOSED
AREA (Lots 1,2,& 4)       99,076 SF            118,095 SF

IMPERVIOUS AREA
BUILDING 13,956 SF           15,050 SF
PAVEMENT 68,231 SF       71,869 SF
SIDEWALK 340 SF              244 SF
LANDSCAPE 16,843 SF 30,956 SF

LSR .170 .262

TREE
2INE

.E*-E

NEW ARBORVITAE
THUJA OCCIDENTALIS
'HOLMSTRUP')
(QUANTITY 4) OR EQUAL AS
SELECTED BY OWNER

*KIUXGZO\K
TXKK

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION  (NOT SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS) TO BE RESTORED WITH MINIMUM 4" TOPSOIL, SEED, FERTILIZER, AND MULCH (TYP). USE SALVAGED TOPSOIL OR IMPORT TOPSOIL IF REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONCRETE (LIGHT DUTY) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 EXISTING PARKING (1 ADA) 9' x 18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 EXISTING PARKING (9' x 18')

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 PARKING (1 ADA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 EXISTING  PARKING (1 ADA) 9' x 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1135 SQUARE FEET OF GRAVEL TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED WITH 4" TOPSOIL SEED AND MATTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAST SAVED DATE: 2/7/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE/TIME: 2/7/2024 11:59 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME: d:\milwaukee_co\franklin_city\Priv\230310  spellman trailers lsr\Design\230310 Spellman Trailer Expansion.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED BY: GREGORY L. GOVERNATORI, PE, CFM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1224 S. Pine Street Burlington, Wisconsin    53105 kapurinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
all in



A2.0

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S

448 Falcon Ridge Drive, Suite B
Burlington, WI 53105
p: 262.758.6064
e: Leslie@psgwisconsin.com

Sheet No.

PSG

5921 W. RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI  53132

OFFICE ADDITION

Project Info. 23130
SPELLMAN
TRAILERS

20
24

-0
2-

05
 R

EV
IE

W
 S

ET

Sheet Title

Revisions

No. Date Description

PC SUBMITTAL12.15.23

Drawn by Checked by

KJV JMS

259 South Street, Suite A
WAUKESHA, WI 53186
p: 833-380-6180

Architect

DEMOLITION NORTH ELEVATION

DEMOLITION WEST ELEVATIONPARTIAL DEMOLITION EAST ELEVATION

RENOVATED NORTH ELEVATION

RENOVATED WEST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0" (22x34); 1/16"=1'-0" (11x17)

RENOVATED EAST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0" (22x34); 1/16"=1'-0" (11x17)

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0" (22x34); 1/16"=1'-0" (11x17)

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0" (22x34); 1/16"=1'-0" (11x17)SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0" (22x34); 1/16"=1'-0" (11x17)

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0" (22x34); 1/16"=1'-0" (11x17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL SALVAGED PRECAST WALL PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL SALVAGED WINDOWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL 13'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORNER ELEMENT BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL 13'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF EXIST'G WALL =20'-0"±

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF EXIST'G WALL =20'-0"±

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL 10'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION KEYNOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EIFS SYSTEM - SANDPEBBLE FINISH, COLOR TO MATCH SHERWIN WILLIAMS 7066 GRAY MATTER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPOSITE SIDING - TIMBERTECH CLADDING BY AZEK. COLOR - ENGLISH WALNUT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE VENEER - HALQUIST STONE BLEND COLLECTION, COLOR - DUBLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMAL STOREFRONT SYSTEM. COLOR - DARK BRONZE w/ 1" INSULATED, SOLARBRONZE GLAZING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED STEEL CHANNEL. COLOR - DARK BRONZE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-FINISHED METAL COPING. COLOR - DARK BRONZE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT USED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACE DOOR AND FRAME w/ DARK BRONZE STOREFRONT SYSTEM w/ INSULATED, SOLARBRONZE GLAZING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE PRECAST WALL PANEL - SALVAGE ONE FOR REUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE SOFFIT IN ITS ENTIRETY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE AND SALVAGE (1) SET WINDOWS FOR REUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE WINDOWS IN THEIR ENTIRETY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE SOFFIT IN ITS ENTIRETY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE BUMP OUT IN ITS ENTIRETY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE BUMP OUT IN ITS ENTIRETY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE SOFFIT IN ITS ENTIRETY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING DOOR AND FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE SOFFIT IN ITS ENTIRETY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE BUMP OUT IN ITS ENTIRETY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING DOOR AND FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2



EAST ELEVATION RENDERING
A9.0

R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

SCALE: 3/8"=1'-0" (22x34); 3/16"=1'-0" (11x17)

448 Falcon Ridge Drive, Suite B
Burlington, WI 53105
p: 262.758.6064
e: Leslie@psgwisconsin.com

Sheet No.

PSG

5921 W. RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI  53132

OFFICE ADDITION

Project Info. 23130
SPELLMAN
TRAILERS

20
24

-0
2-

05
 R

EV
IE

W
 S

ET

Sheet Title

Revisions

No. Date Description

PC SUBMITTAL12.15.23

Drawn by Checked by

KJV JMS

259 South Street, Suite A
WAUKESHA, WI 53186
p: 833-380-6180

Architect

*Building heights are as noted.  All buildings are single story

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF EXIST'G WALL =20'-0"±

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL 10'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL/FASCIA 10'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION KEYNOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EIFS SYSTEM - SANDPEBBLE FINISH, COLOR TO MATCH SHERWIN WILLIAMS 7066 GRAY MATTER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPOSITE SIDING - TIMBERTECH CLADDING BY AZEK. COLOR - ENGLISH WALNUT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE VENEER - HALQUIST STONE BLEND COLLECTION, COLOR - DUBLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMAL STOREFRONT SYSTEM. COLOR - DARK BRONZE w/ 1" INSULATED, SOLARBRONZE GLAZING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED STEEL CHANNEL. COLOR - DARK BRONZE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-FINISHED METAL COPING. COLOR - DARK BRONZE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT USED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACE DOOR AND FRAME w/ DARK BRONZE STOREFRONT SYSTEM w/ INSULATED, SOLARBRONZE GLAZING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



WEST ELEVATION RENDERING

A9.1

R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

NORTH ELEVATION RENDERING

SCALE: 3/8"=1'-0" (22x34); 3/16"=1'-0" (11x17)

SCALE: 3/8"=1'-0" (22x34); 3/16"=1'-0" (11x17)

448 Falcon Ridge Drive, Suite B
Burlington, WI 53105
p: 262.758.6064
e: Leslie@psgwisconsin.com

Sheet No.

PSG

5921 W. RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI  53132

OFFICE ADDITION

Project Info. 23130
SPELLMAN
TRAILERS

20
24

-0
2-

05
 R

EV
IE

W
 S

ET

Sheet Title

Revisions

No. Date Description

PC SUBMITTAL12.15.23

Drawn by Checked by

KJV JMS

259 South Street, Suite A
WAUKESHA, WI 53186
p: 833-380-6180

Architect

* Building heights are as noted. All buildings are single story

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL SALVAGED PRECAST WALL PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL SALVAGED WINDOWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF EXIST'G WALL =20'-0"±

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF EXIST'G WALL =20'-0"±

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL 10'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF WALL/FASCIA 10'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION KEYNOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EIFS SYSTEM - SANDPEBBLE FINISH, COLOR TO MATCH SHERWIN WILLIAMS 7066 GRAY MATTER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPOSITE SIDING - TIMBERTECH CLADDING BY AZEK. COLOR - ENGLISH WALNUT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE VENEER - HALQUIST STONE BLEND COLLECTION, COLOR - DUBLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMAL STOREFRONT SYSTEM. COLOR - DARK BRONZE w/ 1" INSULATED, SOLARBRONZE GLAZING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED STEEL CHANNEL. COLOR - DARK BRONZE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-FINISHED METAL COPING. COLOR - DARK BRONZE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT USED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLACE DOOR AND FRAME w/ DARK BRONZE STOREFRONT SYSTEM w/ INSULATED, SOLARBRONZE GLAZING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



 1

SIGNAGE & LANDSCAPE EASEMENT 
 

SPELLMAN TRAILERS, INC. 
 

 
 THIS EASEMENT is made by and between  the CITY OF FRANKLIN, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as “City,” and Spellman Trailers, 
Inc., a Corporation, as owner (including successors and assign’s of the City as may become 
applicable including the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of above Grantor 
as may be or may become applicable), hereinafter called “Grantor,” (if more than one grantor is 
listed above, said language herein referring thereto shall be interpreted in the plural and refer 
jointly and severally to such grantors).  
 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner and holder of record Title to certain real property 
particularly described on Exhibit “A” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein (the 
Property); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to acquire a permanent easement with the right of entry in 
and across the property hereinafter described with the right to build and construct and/or operate, 
maintain, repair, enlarge, reconstruct, relocate, and inspect as may be or may become applicable 
the following facilities such as signage, wall, landscape plantings thereto, hereinafter called 
“Facilities,” in, upon and across said portion of the property; a signage & landscape easement, as 
shown on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the construction and installation of the Facilities shall be made by City at 
City’s expense and the Facilities shall be the property of the City (recognizing that the property 
interest of the City is only that as arises under this easement), subject to the terms and conditions 
set forth below: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the grant of the easement hereinafter described, 
and the payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration to the Grantor, the 
receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, said Grantor, being the owner and person interested in 
the land hereinafter described, does hereby grant unto the City a perpetual easement on that part 
of the Property in Section 26, Township Five (5) North, Range Twenty-one(21) East, in the City 
of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, more particularly described on Exhibit “C” attached 
hereto (the “Easement Area”). 
 
1. That said facilities shall be maintained and kept in good order and condition by the City 

at the sole cost and expense of the City. No structure, sign or improvement may be 
erected in the Easement Area that exceeds the height of the current signage located in the 
Easement Area as of the date of this Easement. 

 
2. That in and during whatever construction, reconstruction or repair work is or becomes 

necessary in constructing or maintaining of said Facilities, so much of the surface or 
subsurface of the easement area or the Grantor’s property adjacent to the easement area as 
may be disturbed will, at the expense of the City, be replaced in substantially the same 
condition as it was prior to such disturbance; except that the City will in no case be 
responsible for replacing or paying for replacing any aesthetic plantings, fences, or 
improvements other than the ordinary lawns, which were required to be removed or were 
otherwise damaged on the course of doing the above work.  However, the City shall 
indemnify and save harmless the Grantor from and against any loss, damage, claim, cost, 
injury, or liability resulting from negligence or willful acts or omissions on the part of the 
City, it’s agents or employees in connection with said work involved in constructing 
and/or maintaining of said facilities; provided that if the above loss, claim, cost, damage, 



 2

injury, or liability results from the joint negligence of parties hereto, then the liability 
therefore shall be borne by them in proportion to their respective degree of negligence; 
provided further, however, that these provisions are subject to the legal defenses available 
under the law which the City or Grantor are entitled to raise, excepting the defense of so-
called “sovereign immunity.” 

 
3. That no structure may be placed within the limits of the easement area by the Grantor. 
 
4. That no charges will be made against the property for the cost of maintenance or 

operation of said Facilities in the property.   
 
5. The Facilities shall be accessible for maintenance by the City at all times.  The Grantor 

shall submit plans for approval to the City for any underground installation within the 
easement area, which approval shall not unreasonably be withheld, conditioned or 
delayed.  The Grantor makes no representation or warranty with respect to any other 
easements which may exist at the time of the granting of this easement which may 
encroach upon or interfere with the use contemplated in this easement.  In the event there 
is a conflict, this easement shall be subordinate to previously granted easements and the 
City shall hold the Grantor harmless from any conflict. 

 
 
6. That the Grantor shall not alter the surface elevation within the limits of said Easement 

Area. 
 
7. The City and Grantor shall each use, and take reasonable measures to cause their 

employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns to use, the Easement Area 
in a reasonable manner and so as not to obstruct or otherwise use the Easement Area in a 
manner that would unreasonably interfere with the use thereof by the other party hereto or 
its employees, officers, customers, agents, contractors and assigns. 

 
8. Either party hereto may enforce this easement by appropriate action, and should it prevail 

in such litigation, that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees. 

 
9. This easement may not be modified or amended, except by a writing executed and 

delivered by the City and Grantor or their respective successors and assigns. 
 
10. No waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, or 

condition hereof shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence in, or 
consent to any other, further, or succeeding breach of the same or any other term, 
covenant, or condition. 

 
11. If any term or provision of this easement shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable 

under applicable law, then the remaining terms and provisions of this easement shall not 
be affected thereby, and each such remaining term and provision shall be valid and 
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. 

 
12. This easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the 

State of Wisconsin. 
 



 3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set its hand and seals this 
 
 ON THIS DATE OF: ____________________________, 2023 
     
    _____________________________________ 
         Spellman Trailers, INC. 
 
    By: _____________________________________ 
          Name and Title 
STATE OF ________________ 
       ss 
COUNTY OF _____________ 
 
 
Before me personally appeared on the _______ day of __________, 2023, the above named 
 
______________________, __________________ of Spellman Trailers, Inc. 
         (Name printed)                              (Title)               (Development) 
to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing Easement and acknowledged the 
same as the voluntary act and deed of said corporation. 
             
     ________________________________________ 
     NOTARY PUBLIC 
     My commission expires ____________________ 
 
 
    CITY OF FRANKLIN 
 
    By: _____________________________________ 
     John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
    By: _____________________________________ 
                Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 
    
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
                                          SS 
COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE) 
 
 On this ________ day of ____________________, 2023,  before me personally appeared 
Stephen R. Olson and Karen L. Kastenson, who being by me duly sworn, did say that they are 
respectively the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Franklin, and that the seal affixed to said 
instrument is the corporate seal of said municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they 
executed the foregoing assignment as such officers as the deed of said municipal corporation by 
its authority and pursuant to resolution file No. _________________adopted by its Common 
Council on ________________, 2023. 
             
     ________________________________________ 
                             Notary Public 
     My commission expires ____________________ 
 
This instrument was drafted by the City of Franklin. 
 
Approved as to contents     _________________________________ 
Date:       City Engineer 
Approved as to form only    _________________________________ 
Date:       City Attorney 



 4

Exhibit A 
 

(Legal Description of the Property) 
5921 Ryan Road (Tax key No.                           & Vacated Service Road 

 
 
 

Parcel A: Tax Key No.  
 
All of lots 1,2 and 4 of Certified Survey Map 1330, as recorded in Milwaukee County Register of 
Deeds office as Document No. 4538848, being a part of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 26, 
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. 
 
AND 
 
Vacated Service Road 
 
The right of way used for Service Road purposes which abuts the southside of West Ryan Road 
(STH100) from South 60th Street to South 58th Street and which abutted on its boundary the 
5921 West Ryan Road (Tax key No.________________) and 5825 West Ryan Road (Tax Key 
No. 899-9991-004) 
 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ronnie
Highlight
                         

Ronnie
Highlight
________________

Ronnie
Rectangle



Ronnie
Rectangle

Ronnie
Rectangle

Ronnie
Rectangle

Ronnie
Typewritten Text
LANDSCAPE

Ronnie
Typewritten Text
SIGNAGE

Ronnie
Typewritten Text
SPELLMAN TRAILERS INC5921 W. RYAN RD

Ronnie
Typewritten Text
T & E LLC5825 W RYAN RD899-9901-004

Ronnie
Rectangle

Ronnie
Rectangle

Ronnie
Typewritten Text



 6

 
Exhibit C 

 
(Description of the Easement) 

 
 
SIGNAGE EASEMENT 

 

Being a part of the recorded Certified Survey map No. 1330, Document # 4538848, Reel # 542 Image # 304-305, 

Recorded on July 27, 1970 at Milwaukee County Register of Deeds, also being a part of the NW 1/4 of Section 26, 

Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, bounded and described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Northwest corner of said NW 1/4 of Section 26; thence S0º24’28”E along the West line of said 

1/4 of Section, 110.02 feet to a point; thence N88º22’10”E, 45.01 feet to a point of beginning of the land to be 

described; thence  continuing N88º22’10”E, 35.00 feet to a point; thence S00º24’28”E, 10.00 feet to a point; thence 

S88º22’10”W, 20.00 feet to a point; thence S43º57’20”W, 7.15 feet to a point; thence S0º24’28”E, 20.00 feet to a 

point; thence S88º22’10”W, 10.00 feet to a point; thence N00º24’28”W, 35.00 feet to a place of beginning. 

 

 Said lands containing 612.41 square feet or 0.01 acres. 

 

AND 

 

LANDSCAPE EASEMENT 

 

Commencing at the Northwest corner of said NW 1/4 of Section 26; thence S0º24’28”E along the West line of said 

1/4 of Section, 60.02 feet to a point; thence N88º22’10”E, 291.87 feet to a point of beginning of the land to be 

described; thence  continuing N88º22’10”E, 30.01 feet to a point; thence S00º24’28”E, 30.00 feet to a point; thence 

S88º22’10”W, 30.01 feet to a point; thence N0º24’28”W, 30.00 feet to a place of beginning. 

 

Said lands containing 900.30 square feet or 0.02 acres. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Easements\Easement sample for Sign Monument for Spellman Trailers Inc.2023 


	01 2024-0222 Plan Commission Agenda (rev. KH)
	02 2023-0208 PC Minutes - Draft
	03 Item C.1._Ghaffar_Area Exception
	1 PC Staff Report - Ghaffar AE
	2 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Location

	3 Review comments - Ghaffar Area Exception
	4 App_combined
	project summary
	cidf_lrpc3tv01


	04 Item D.1._Spellman_Site Plan Amend & Land Combination
	01 2024-0222 PC Report - Spellman Trailers LC and SP - 5921 W. Ryan Road
	CITY OF FRANKLIN

	02 LC RES Spellman Trailers - 5921 W. Ryan Road
	03 SP Amendment RES Spellman Trailers - 5921 W. Ryan Road
	04 Planning map
	05 Project Narrative
	06 City of Franklin, WI Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations 02.06.24 - WIth Mitigation
	07 Response to Staff Comments - Spellman Trailers LC and SP - 5921 W. Ryan Road
	Department of City Development

	08 230310_Exhibit Revised
	09 Spellman Trailers Expansion 2.07.24
	10 23130_Spellman Elevations-Renderings (002)
	Sheets and Views
	A9.0


	11 Easement for Signage for Spellman Trailers Inc2024 Final


